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BOARD’S Report

To
The Members

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 22nd Annual Report on the working of your Company, together with the audited
financial statements, for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS, OPERATIONS, STATE OF AFFAIRS

[Amount in Rs lakhs]

Particulars FY 2018-19 | FY 2019-20
Total Income 164.88 202.73
Expenses 124.80 131.69
Profit before exception items and Tax 40.08 71.03
Tax Expenses 11.13 18.34
Profit for the Year 28.95 52.69
Total comprehensive income for the year 30.36 49.46

The income of the Company during the year was Rs. 202.73 lakhs as against Rs. 164.88 lakhs during the previous year.
The Company has received management fee of Rs. 5.00 lakhs, Rs. 104.64 lakhs, Rs. 35.19 lakhs and Rs. 20.00 lakhs from
KITVEN Fund-2, KARSEMVEN Fund, KITVEN Fund-3 (Biotech) and KITVEN Fund-4 (AVGC) respectively. The total expense for
the year was at Rs. 131.69 lakhs as against Rs. 124.80 lakhs during the previous year. Operations of the Company resulted in
profit of Rs. 52.69 lakhs. The other equity (general reserve&retained earnings) for the year ending was Rs. 420.24lakhs as against
Rs. 385.69 lakhs at the end of the previous year.

You are aware that your Company is the Managers for Karnataka Information Technology Venture Capital Fund - 2 (KITVEN
Fund - 2), Karnataka Semiconductor Venture Capital Fund (KARSEMVEN Fund), Karnataka Information Technology Venture
Capital Fund-3 (Biotech) [KITVEN Fund-3 (Biotech)] and KITVEN Fund-4 (AVGC). The role of the Company includes feasibility
study of proposals, evaluation of potential investment opportunities, due-diligence etc., for these Funds and ensuring maximum
returns to shareholders / investors.

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) with effect from 1st April, 2018 pursuant to the applicable law
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the financial results
are IND AS compliant.

2. DIVIDEND:

Your Board has recommended to pay dividend of Rs. 25/- on each fully paid up Equity Shares of Rs.100/- i.e., 25% on the paid-up
Share Capital.

3. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

There is a change in composition of Board of Directors subsequent to the date of Financial Statements. Details are as under:-

# Name Designation Remarks - Details of Appointment

and Cessation
Date of Appointment : 20 July 2019
Date of Cessation : 26 May 2020

Date of Appointment: 26 May 2020
Date of Cessation : Continuing

Date of Appointment: 31 July 2020
Date of Cessation: Continuing

Date of Appointment: 08 May 2019
Date of Cessation: 28 Sept 2020

Date of Appointment: 28 Sept 2020
Date of Cessation: Continuing

1 | Shri Prashanth Kumar Mishra, IAS | Nominee Director

2 | Smt C N Meena Nagaraj, IAS Nominee Director

3 | Dr P C Jaffer, IAS Nominee Director

4 | Shri Ganga Ram Baderiya, I1AS Nominee Director

5 | Shri M S Srikar, IAS Nominee Director

2
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4. MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY:

There were no material changes and commitments which occurred affecting the financial position of the Company between
31st March, 2020 and the date on which this report has been signed.

5. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There was no change in the nature of business.

6. AMOUNTS TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES:

The Company has not proposed to transfer any amount to its reserves.
7. CAPITAL INVESTMENTS:

Capital Investments during the financial year 2019-20 was Rs. NIL

8. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL:

There were no changes in the Share Capital Structure of the Company during the financial year. Share Capital structure of the
Company is as follows:

Authorized Share Capital:

Rs.1,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore only) divided into 1,00,000 (One Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- (Rupee One Hundred
only) each.

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital:
Rs.49,50,000/- (Rupees Forty Nine Lakhs Fifty Thousand only) divided into 49,500 (Forty Nine Thousand Five Hundred) Equity
Shares of Rs. 100/- (Rupees One Hundred only) each.

Disclosure regarding Issue of Equity Shares with Differential Voting Rights:
During the year under review, the Company has not issued Shares with Differential Voting Rights.

Disclosure regarding issue of Employee Stock Options:

During the year under review, the Company has not issued Shares to Employee Stock Options.

Disclosure regarding issue of Sweat Equity Shares:

During the year under review, the Company has not issued Sweat Equity Shares.
9. BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year, the Meetings of the Board are held at regular intervals with a time gap of not more than 120 days between
two consecutive Meetings. Additional Meetings of the Board of Directors are held when necessary. During the year under
review 4 (four) Meetings were held on 28 June 2019, 01 Aug 2019, 27 Sept 2019 and 22January 2020. The Agenda and notes
thereon for the Meeting were circulated to the Directors in advance. Minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors are
circulated and maintained according to the provisions of Secretarial Standards and the Companies Act, 2013.
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10. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board and Management structure of the Company during the year as follows:

# Name Designation Remarks - Details of Appointment
and Cessation

1 Shri Ganga Ram Baderiya, IAS Nominee Director Date of Appointment : 08 May 2019
Date of Cessation : Continuing

2 Dr Ekroop Caur, IAS Nominee Director Date of Appointment: 09 August 2017
Date of Cessation : Continuing

3 | Shri Gaurav Gupta, IAS Nominee Director Date of Appointment: 10 March 2017
Date of Cessation: 19 June 2019

4 Shri Darpan Jain, IAS Nominee Director Date of Appointment: 03 March 2017
Date of Cessation: 03 April 2019

5 Smt Gunjan Krishna, IAS Nominee Director Date of Appointment: 19 July 2018

Date of Cessation : 08 May 2019

6 Smt Priyanka Mary Francis, IAS Nominee Director Date of Appointment: 19 June 2019
Date of Cessation : 20 July 2019

7 Shri Prashant Kumar Mishra, IAS Nominee Director Date of Appointment : 20 July 2019
Date of Cessation : Continuing

8 Shri N R N Simha Nominee Director Date of Appointment: 03 Nov 2015
Date of Cessation Continuing

9 Shri L B Nilogal Nominee Director Date of Appointment: 09 Aug 2017
Date of Cessation : 08 November 2019

10 | Shri G V Chandrakumar Nominee Director Date of Appointment: 18 Dec 2019
Date of Cessation : Continuing

11 | Shri Sanjay Jain Nominee Director Date of Appointment: 14 Feb 2019
Date of Cessation Continuing

12 | Shri AR Jayakumar Wholetime Director | Date of Appointment: 10 Sept 2008

Date of Cessation : Continuing

During the year KSIIDC nominated Shri Ganga Ram Baderiya as, Director in place of Smt. Gunjan Krishna, KITS nominated
Smt. Priyanka Mary Francis as Director in place of Shri Gaurav Gupta. Thereafter, KITS nominated Shri Prashant Kumar Mishra
as Director in place of Smt. Priyanka Mary Francis. KSFC nominated Shri G V Chandrakumar in place of Shri L B Nilogal. KSIIDC
withdrew nomination of Shri Darpan Jain during the year. Your Board records its appreciation of the services rendered by the
outgoing Directors.

11. STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India, New Delhi, have appointed Messrs Surajmal Daga & Co., Chartered Accountants as
the Statutory Auditors for the year under review and their remuneration has been approved by the Shareholders.

QUALIFICATIONS IN THE AUDIT REPORT:
There was no qualification from the Auditors on the Annual Accounts for the year of the Company
12. DISCLOSURE RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES:

There are no employees receiving remuneration more than Rs.1,02,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Two Lakhs only) per annum
and/or Rs. 8,50,000/- (Rupees Eight Lakhs Fifty Thousand only) per month. Therefore statement/disclosure pursuant to Sub Rule
5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not required to be circulated to
the members.
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There are no employees posted and working in a country outside India, not being Directors or relatives, drawing more than
Rs. 1,02,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Two Lakhs only) per financial year or Rs. 8,50,000/- (Rupees Eight Lakhs Fifty Thousand
only) per month as the case may be. Therefore statement/disclosure pursuant to Sub Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not required to be circulated to the members and is not attached to

the Annual Report.

13. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO:

(A) Conservation of energy:

Steps taken / impact on conservation of energy The Company’s operations are not power intensive. Nevertheless, your
Company has introduced various measures to conserve and minimize
the use of energy wherever it is possible.

(i) Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate
sources of energy including waste generated

Nil

(i) Capital investment on energy conservation
equipment

Not Applicable

Total energy consumption and energy consumption
per unit of production as per Form A

Not Applicable

(B) Technology absorption:

Efforts in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation Nil

development, import substitution, etc.

Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts, e.g. product improvement, cost reduction, product Not Applicable

financial year), following information may be furnished:

In case of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of the

Technology imported

Not Applicable

Year of Import

Not Applicable

Has technology been fully absorbed

Not Applicable

If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken place, reasons therefore and future plan of action Not Applicable

(C) Research and Development (R&D)

Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the Company

The Company has not carried out any research and development
work during the course of the year.

Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D

Not Applicable

Future plan of action

Not Applicable

Expenditure on R & D

(a) Capital Nil
(b) Recurring Nil
(c) Total Nil
(d) Total R & D expenditure as a percentage of total turnover Nil
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(D) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

Activities relating to exports Not Applicable
Initiatives taken to increase exports Not Applicable
Development of new export markets for products and services Not Applicable
Export plans Not Applicable
Total Exchange used (Cash basis) Nil
Total Foreign Exchange Earned (Accrual Basis) Nil

14. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In pursuance of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby confirm that:

Your Company’s Directors make the following statement in terms of sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013,
which is to the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the applicable Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS)
and requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”) to the extent applicable to the Company; on the historical cost
convention; as a going concern and on the accrual basis. There are no material departures in the adoption of the applicable
Indian Accounting Standards.

The Board of Directors has selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end
of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period.

The Board of Directors has taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

The Board of Directors has laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

The Board of Directors has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

15. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

As required pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of Annual Return in MGT- 9 as a part of this Annual Report is attached as Annexure .

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

A detailed report on contracts and arrangements made with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act
2013 for the year in the prescribed format, AOC 2 as a part of this Annual Report is attached as Annexure Il

17. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY (CSR):

Since the Company does not meet the criteria for the applicability of Section 135 of the Companies Act read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2015, this clause is not applicable.

18. DETAILS RELATING TO DEPOSITS, COVERING THE FOLLOWING:

The following details of deposits, covered under Chapter V of the act:

Deposits Accepted during the year- Nil

Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year-Nil
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Ill.  Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year and if so, number
of such cases and the total amount involved- Nil

IV.  The details of deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter-Nil

19. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS:

There was no such order to disclose hereunder.

20. DETAILS OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company is following adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements.
21. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

The Company has not given any Loans, Guarantees or made investments during the financial year.

22. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

In today’s economic environment, Risk Management is a very important part of business. The main aim of risk management is to
identify, monitor and take precautionary measures in respect of the events that may pose risks for the business. Your Company’s
risk management is embedded in the business processes. Your Company has identified the following risks:

Key Risks Mitigation Policies

Interest Rate Risk Dependence on debt is very minimum and we have surplus funds with Banks to settle the
entire debt in case the need arises.

Human Resources Risk By continuously benchmarking of the best HR practices across the industry and carrying
out necessary improvements to attract and retain the best talent.

Competition Risk By continuous efforts to enhance the brand image of the Company by focusing on R&D,
quality, Cost, timely delivery and customer service.

Employee Health and Safety Risk | By development and implementation of safety standards across the various departments of
the Company to provide healthy and safe working environment.

23. INFORMATION ABOUT THE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE / FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE SUBSIDIARIES /
ASSOCIATES/ JV:

The Company does not have any Subsidiaries/Associates/Joint Venture.

24. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

Industrial relations have been cordial and constructive, which have helped your Company to achieve production targets.
25. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the support and co-operation received from KSIIDC, KSFC, KITS,
SIDBI, subscribers of all the Venture Capital Funds being managed by the company, banks and customers. The Directors also
record their deep appreciation of the efforts made by the employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the
Board of Directors

M S Srikar, IAS

Chairman

DIN: 07882939

Address: No.203, SOBHA ORCHID
Place: Bengaluru Jakkur, Bengaluru - 560064
Date: 30th September, 2020 Karnataka
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Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2020
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

|. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN: U75112KA1998PTC023646
Foreign Company Registration Number/GLN: NIL
i) Registration Date 22nd  April, 1998
Date  Month Year
iii) Name of the Company: Karnataka Asset Management Company Private Limited
iv) Category of the Company: - [PI. tick]
1. Public Company NA
2. Private company YES
Sub Category of the Company:- [Please tick whichever are applicable]
1. Government Company NA
2. Small Company NA
3. One Person Company NA
4. Subsidiary of Foreign Company NA
5. NBFC NA
6. Guarantee Company NA
7. Limited by shares YES
8. Unlimited Company NA
9. Company having share capital YES
10. Company not having share capital NA
11. Company Registered under Section 8 NA
v) REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS AND CONTACT DETAILS:
Address Town / City Khanija Bhavan, 4th Floor, East Wing, 49, Race Course Road, Bengaluru - 560 001
State Pin Code Karnataka 560 001
Country Name Country Code India IN
Telephone With STD 080 22385480
Fax Number 080 22386836
Email Address Website, if any EMAIL - info@kitven.in, WEBSITE - www.kitven.in/mgrstrust.htm

vi) Whether shares listed on recognized Stock Exchange(s) — No

If yes, details of stock exchanges where shares are listed

SI. No. Stock Exchange Name Stock Exchange Code
NA NA NA

vii) Name, Address and contact details of Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA), if any: NA

Name of Registrar & Transfer Agents -
Address Town / City -
State Pin Code -
Country Name Country Code -
Telephone With STD -
Fax Number -

Email Address Website, if any -




22nd Annual Report 2019-2020 KARNATAKA ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

SI. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the Product/ service % to total turnover of the Company
No. products / services
1 | Management of investment Funds 6630 84.94%

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES —

Sl. | Name and Address of | CIN/GLN | Holding/ Subsidiary/ | % of shares Held Applicable
No. the Company Associate Section
1 NA NA NA NA NA

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding

No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the
the year end of the year %
Category of Shareholders Demat | Physical | Total | %of | Demat | Physical | Total %of | Change
Total Total
Shares Shares
A. Promoters - - - - - - - - -
(1) Indian - - - - - - - - -
a) Individual / HUF - - - - - - - - -
b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
c) State Govt (s) - - - - - - - - -
d) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -
e) Banks / FI - 49500 | 49500 | 100% - 49500 | 49500 100% -
f) Any Other.... - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (1) 49500 | 49500 | 100% - 49500 | 49500 100% -
(2) Foreign - - - - - - - - -

a) NRIs -Individuals - - - - - - - - -
b) Other —Individuals - - - - - - - - -
c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -
d) Banks / FlI - - - - - - - - -
e) Any Other.... - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (2) - - - - - - - - -
49500 | 49500 | 100% 49500 | 49500 100% -

Total shareholding of
Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)

B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions - - - - - - - - -

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -
b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -
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f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -

q) Flis - - - - ] - - R R

h) Foreign Venture Capital - - - - - - - - -
Funds

i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (B)(1) - - - - - - - - -
2. Non-Institutions - - - - - - - - -

a) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

i) Indian - - - - - - - - -

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -

b) Individuals - - - - - - - - -

i) Individual shareholders - - - - - - - - -
holding nominal share capital
up to Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual shareholders - - - - - - - - -
holding nominal share capital
in excess of Rs 1 lakh

c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (B)(2) - - - - - - - - -

Total Public Shareholding - - - - - - - - -
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held by Custodian - - - - - - - - -
for GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C)

49500 | 49500 | 100% 49500 | 49500 100% -

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end of the year
of the year .
) % Change in
Sl. | Shareholder’s % of total %of Shares % of total %of Shares Shareholding
No. Name No. of Shares Pledged / No. of Shares Pledged / During the year
Shares of the encumbered Shares of the encumbered to
Company | to total shares Company total shares
KSIIDC 16500 33.33% Nil 16500 33.33% Nil Nil
KSFC 16500 33.33% Nil 16500 33.33% Nil Nil
SIDBI 16500 33.33% Nil 16500 33.33% Nil Nil
TOTAL 49500 100% 49500 100%
(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change): NIL
Cumulative

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year Shareholding during the

SI. year
No. % of total % of total
No. of No. of
shares of the shares of the
shares shares
Company Company
At the beginning of the year 49500 100% 49500 100%
2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during Nil Nil Nil Nil
the year specifying there as on for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment /transfer /bonus/ sweat equity etc)
3 At the End of the year 49500 100% 49500 100%

10
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): NIL

. Cumulative
Sl. Sh?rel_wldmg at the Shareholding during
No. beginning of the year
the year
0 [
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares of the shares of the
shares shares
Company Company
For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
2 Date wise Increase /Decrease in Shareholding during the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
specifying there as on for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer /bonus/ sweat equity etc)
3 At the End of the year (or on the date of separation, if separated Nil Nil Nil Nil
during the year)
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: NIL
. Cumulative
Sl. Sh:_:lret_mldlng at the Shareholding during
No. beginning of the year
the year
For Each of the Directors and KMP % of total % of total
No. of No. of
shares of the shares of the
shares shares
Company Company
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
2 Date wise Increase /Decrease in Share holding during the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
specifying the reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer /bonus/ sweat equity etc)
3 At the End of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment: NIL

Secured Loans

excluding Unsecured Deposits Total

deposits Loans Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year Nil Nil Nil Nil
i) Principal Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil
ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (i+ii+iii) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year Nil Nil Nil Nil
+ Addition Nil Nil Nil Nil
* Reduction Nil Nil Nil Nil
Net Change Nil Nil Nil Nil
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year Nil Nil Nil Nil
i) Principal Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil
ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (i+ii+iii) Nil Nil Nil Nil

1"
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Name of MD/WTD/Manager
ﬁl' Particulars of Remuneration Shri AR Jayakumar Total
o. ' Y Al Amount (Rs)
Chief Executive Officer
1 1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions containedin section 17(1) of the 42,09,228 42,09,228
Income-tax Act,1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)Income-tax Act, 1961 Nil
(c) Profits in lieu of salary undersection 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 Nil
2 Stock Option Nil
3 Sweat Equity Nil
4 Commission Nil
- as % of profit Nil
- others, specify... Nil
5 Others, please specify Nil
Total (A) 42,09,228 42,09,228
Ceiling as per the Act - - - - -

B. Remuneration to other Directors:

3(')‘_ Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
1 Independent Directors

* Fee for attending board / committee meetings Nil Nil -

» Commission Nil Nil -

* Others, please specify Nil Nil -

Total (1) Nil Nil
2 Other Non-Executive Directors

* Fee for attending board/ committee meetings

As per Annex a

As per Annex a

* Commission

Nil

* Others, please specify

Nil -

Total (2)

As per Annex a

As per Annex a

Total (B)=(1+2)

As per Annex a

As per Annex a

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

12
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD:

Key Managerial Personnel
: ! Particulars of Remuneration Company Total
o. CEO CFO | Amount
Secretary
1 1. Gross salary Nil Nil Nil Nil
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961 Nil Nil Nil Nil
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 Nil Nil Nil Nil
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 Nil Nil Nil Nil
2 Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil
4 Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil
- as % of profit Nil Nil Nil Nil
- others specify... Nil Nil Nil Nil
5 Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil Nil Nil
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
e | it | uonnany” | Aoty || 2200,
Companies | Description Com;?oundlng COURT] any (glve
Act fees imposed Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty, Punishment, Compounding None
B. DIRECTORS | | |
Penalty, Punishment, Compounding None
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT | | |
Penalty, Punishment, Compounding None

Place : Bengaluru
Date: 30th September, 2020

For and on behalf of the
Board of Directors

M S Srikar, IAS

Chairman

DIN: 07882939

Address: No. 203, Sobha Orchid,
Jakkur, Bengaluru — 560064
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Details of sitting fee paid to non-Executive Directors of the Company during the financial year

Sitting fee paid for

Sitting fee paid for

# Name of the Director atten_ding _Board attendipg Co_mmittee .(I;g-:;f:;
meetings (in Rs.) meetings (in Rs.)
1 | Shri Ganga Ram Baderiya, IAS 4000 0 4000
2 | Dr Ekroop Caur, IAS 4000 0 4000
3 | Smt Priyanka Mary Francis, IAS 1000 0 1000
4 | Shri NR N Simha 3000 3000 6000
5 | Shri L B Nilogal 1000 0 1000
6 | Shri Sanjay Jain * 2000 0 2000
7 | Shri Prashanth Kumar Mishra, IAS 2000 12000 14000
8 | Shri GV Chandra Kumar 1000 0 1000
TOTAL 18000 15000 33000

Annex a

* Sitting fee being directly paid to the institution and not to the individual Director
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Annexure Il

FORM NO. AOC 2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in
sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014)

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Sl. PARTICULARS DETAILS

No.
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship KSIIDC (Common Directors)
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Sharing the part of the premises with KSIIDC
(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions 3 years lease with effect from 01-10-2017
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions Not exceeding Rs.1,02,000/- pm

including the value, if any:

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 27-06-2017
() Amount paid as advances, if any: Rs.10,20,000/-

For and on behalf of the
Board of Directors

M S Srikar, IAS

Chairman

DIN: 07882939
Place : Bengaluru Address: No. 203, Sobha Orchid,
Date: 30th September, 2020 Jakkur, Bengaluru — 560064
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
M/s. KARNATAKA ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of M/s. Karnataka Asset Management Company Private
Limited (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, profit and total comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Description of Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

1) Impact of COVID-19 pandemic on Going Concern assessment of the Company

Refer Note 2(c) related to “Going Concern” and | In view of the significance of the matter we applied the following audit
Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health | procedures in this area, among others to obtain sufficient appropriate
pandemic from COVID-19” of the standalone financial | audit evidence:

statements » Obtained an understanding of the Company’s internal controls over

The World Health Organisation in February 2020 its forecasting process;
declared COVID 19 as a pandemic. Governments
around the world including India have been taking
significant measures to curb the spread of the
virus including imposing mandatory lockdowns and
restrictions in activities. Consequently, the Company’s
offices also had to be closed down for a considerable | « Assessed the sensitiviies and performed stress testing on
period of time, including after the year end. the forecasted cash flows;

« Compared the key assumptions adopted by the Company in preparing
the forecasted cash flows with our expectations based on actual
cashflows of 2019-20 and our understanding of the changes to the
Company’s business;

These lockdowns have a significant impact on the | « Examined the Company’s funding arrangements and evaluated the
overall economic activity in India. Accordingly, the future financing terms and covenants to assess its ability to renew existing
cash flow projections used to assess going concern loans (if any) and/or obtain additional financing if the need arises;

are subject to significant estimation uncertainties.
) 9 » Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to application of

In view of the above, we have identified our assessment the going concern assumption.
of the going concern basis of accounting as a key audit
matter
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The Other information comprises
the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including the Annexures to Board’s Report,
Business responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s information (as provided and applicable to the said
Company), but does not include the Financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that if there is any material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation
of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total Comprehensive
Income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind As and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial statements, including the disclosures,and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, statement of changes in Equity
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2020 taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16)
of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.
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h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

iii. There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order,2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement. on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.:

3. With respect to the Directions under section 143(5) of the Companies Act 2013, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure C’

For SURAJMAL DAGA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No004234S

(SURAJMAL DAGA)
PROPRIETOR Place: Bengaluru
M. No.021985 Date: 30/09/2020

UDIN: 20021985AAAAAG3182
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Member of
Karnataka Asset Management Company Private Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Karnataka Asset Management Company Private Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAl’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAIl and prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For SURAJMAL DAGA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No004234S

(SURAJMAL DAGA)

PROPRIETOR
Place: Bengaluru M. No.021985
Date: 30/09/2020 UDIN: 20021985AAAAAG3182
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure Referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our Independent
Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, we
report that:

(i)
(a)

(b)

(c)
(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

In respect of the company’s fixed assets:

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets;

The Company has a regular programme of verification to cover all the items of its Fixed Assets by which the fixed assets are
verified by the management in a phased manner over a period of One Year. Pursuant to the program, the fixed assets has
been physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of
its assets.

The Company does not hold any immovable properties, hence title deeds in the name of the Company is not applicable.

The Company is a service company, primarily rendering consultancy & Management services in the field of investment by
venture capital funds. Accordingly, it has nither purchased / sold any goods and also does not hold any opening physical
inventories or has any closing physical inventories of goods. Thus the requirement of reporting of verification of stocks or
maintenance of inventory records as per paragraph 3(ii) of the Order in our opinion does not arise.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances to parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the
Act. Accordingly, the question of reporting as per the provisions of clause (a) to (c) of Paragraph 3(iii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions
of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans, investments, guarantees and securities made or given.

Based on our scrutiny of the Company’s records and according to the information and explanations provided by the
management, in our opinion the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public so far upto 31st March 2020 and
hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the
public are not applicable.

As informed to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the Company.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of account
and records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, goods and service tax, cess and material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the
Company with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they
become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, outstanding on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the records of the Company and as per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

taken any loan either from financial institutions, banks or from the government and has not issued any debentures, hence in
our opinion the question of reporting on defaults on repayment to the financial institutions, banks, government or debentures
does not arise and is not applicable.
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(ix) According to the information and explanations given by the management and on the basis of the audit procedures performed,
the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and
term Loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, we report that
no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year and
in the course of our audit.

(xi) Based upon the Audit procedures performed and the information and explanation given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(xii) In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations provided by the management, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the requirements of Paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act and the details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year under review.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
Paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For SURAJMAL DAGA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No004234S

(SURAJMAL DAGA)

PROPRIETOR
Place: Bengaluru M. No.021985
Date: 30/09/2020 UDIN: 20021985AAAAAG3182
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“ANNEXURE C” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure Referred to in paragraph 3 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our Independent
Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, we
report that:

Report on the Directions issued under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act)

Whether the Company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through IT system? If Yes, the
implications of processing of accounting transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along with the financial
implications, if any, may be stated.

Based on our scrutiny of the Company’s records and according to the information and explanations provided by the
management, in our opinion the Company has a system in place to process all accounting transactions through IT system.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts /loans/interest etc. made by a lender
to the Company due to the Company’s inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated.

Based on our scrutiny of the Company’s records and according to the information and explanations provided by the
management, the Company does not have any loans, hence reporting or opinion on restructuring, waiver / write off is not
applicable.

Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from central/ state agencies were properly accounted for/ utilized as
per its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

Based on our scrutiny of the Company’s records and according to the information and explanations provided by the
management, the Company is primarily rendering consultancy & Management services in the field of investment by venture
capital funds and the company has not received any funds and no funds are receivable for any specific schemes from the
central / state agencies directly. Hence reporting of accounting/ utilization and cases of deviation is not applicable.

For SURAJMAL DAGA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No004234S

(SURAJMAL DAGA)

PROPRIETOR
Place: Bengaluru M. No.021985
Date: 30/09/2020 UDIN: 20021985AAAAAG3182
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020

ALLAMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED

Particulars Notes | As at 31st March, 2020 | As at 31st March, 2019
| ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 92,393 145,812
(b) Right of Use Asset 3 579,364 -
(c) Financial assets
i) Other financial assets 4 995,701 937,465
(d) Deferred tax assets (net) 5 1,877,750 1,453,004
Total non-current assets 3,545,208 2,536,281
2 Current assets
(a) Financial assets
i. Trade Receivables 6 4,391,170 -
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 7 632,092 1,198,031
iii. Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents 8 45,136,314 38,463,940
iv.Other financial assets 9 960,309 1,182,430
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 10 1,146,164 1,417,704
(c) Other current assets 11 36,856 5,179,383
Total current assets 52,302,905 47,441,488
Total assets 55,848,113 49,977,769
Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 4,950,000 4,950,000
(b) Other equity 13 42,024,103 38,569,523
Total equity 46,974,103 43,519,523
2 LIABILITIES
i Non-current liabilities
(a) Provisions 14 6,938,605 5,160,378
Total non-current liabilities 6,938,605 5,160,378
ii Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 599,698 -
(i) Other financial liabilities 15 147,450 223,287
(b) Other current liabilities 16 847,904 808,520
(c) Provisions 17 337,739 266,061
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 18 2,614 -
Total current liabilities 1,935,405 1,297,868
Total liabilities 8,874,010 6,458,246
Total equity and liabilities 55,848,113 49,977,769

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For SURAJMAL DAGA AND CO.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No: 004234S

SURAJMAL DAGA
PROPRIETOR
Membership No: 021985

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 30th September 2020
UDIN: 20021985AAAAAG3182

M S SRIKAR, IAS
CHAIRMAN
DIN:- 07882939

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

A R JAYAKUMAR
DIRECTOR
DIN: 00827438

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 30th September 2020
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED

Particulars Notes | Year ended 31 March 2020 | Year ended 31 March 2019
| Revenue from operations 19 17,221,619 13,719,272
Il Other income 20 3,051,766 2,769,498
1] Total Income 20,273,385 16,488,770
IV Expenses
Employee benefit expense 21 10,492,836 9,640,088
Finance costs 22 85,603 1,730
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 1,189,802 45,926
Other expenses 24 1,401,585 2,792,188
\Y Total expenses (V) 13,169,826 12,479,932
VI Profit before exceptional items and tax 7,103,559 4,008,838
VI Exceptional items - -
VIIl | Profit before tax from continuing operations 7,103,559 4,008,838
IX Income tax expense
- Current tax (2,151,047) (1,344,182)
- Deferred tax 316,320 230,773
Total tax expense (1,834,727) (1,113,409)
X Profit from continuing operations 5,268,833 2,895,429
XI Discontinued operations - -
XIV | Profit for the year 5,268,833 2,895,429

XV | Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations (430,805) 190,773

Income tax relating to these items 108,425 (49,601)

(322,380) 141,172

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (322,380) 141,172

XVI | Total comprehensive income for the year 4,946,453 3,036,601
XVII | Earnings per equity share for profit from continuing operation :

Basic earnings per share 25 106.44 58.49

Diluted earnings per share

XVIII'| Earnings per equity share for profit from discontinued operation :
Basic earnings per share - -
Diluted earnings per share - -

XIX | Earnings per equity share for profit from continuing and
discontinued operation :

Basic earnings per share 106.44 58.49
Diluted earnings per share

For SURAJMAL DAGA AND CO., For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration No: 004234S

SURAJMAL DAGA M S SRIKAR, IAS A R JAYAKUMAR
PROPRIETOR CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
Membership No: 021985 DIN:- 07882939 DIN: 00827438
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: 30th September 2020 Date: 30th September 2020

UDIN: 20021985AAAAAG3182
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED

Notes | Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2020 March 2019

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before income tax from:
Continuing operations 7,103,559 4,008,838
Discontinued operations - -

Profit before income tax including discontinued operations 7,103,559 4,008,838
Adjustments for:

Int. on Lease Liabilites 85,603

Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,189,802 45,926
Remeasurement of Employee Benefit Obligation (430,805) 190,773
Loss (Profit) on sale of assets 11,746 -
Interest income classified as investing cash flows (2,945,676) (2,767,571)
Operating profit before worling capital changes 5,014,229 1,477,966
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets 222,121 (41,267)
Increase in in long-term provisions 1,778,227 932,835
Increase in in Short-term provisions 71,678 40,766
(Increase)/decrease in other non current financial assets (58,236) (54,810)
(Increase)/decrease in trade recieveables (4,391,170) -
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets 5,414,067 (5,777,076)
Increase in Current tax liabilities 39,384 393,945
Increase in other current liabilities (73,223) (307,675)
Cash generated from operations 8,017,077 (3,335,316)
Income taxes paid (2,151,047) (1,344,182)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 5,866,030 (4,679,498)

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment - -

Increase/(Decrease) in FD (6,672,374) 4,359,372
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 10,600 -
Interest received 2,945,676 2,767,571
Net cash outflow from investing activities (3,716,098) 7,126,943

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds/(Repayment) of short term borrowings - -

Dividend Paid (1,237,500) (1,237,500)
Lease Liabilities Payment (1,138,396)

Tax on dividend (254,372) (254,373)
Interest paid (85,603) -
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities (2,715,871) (1,491,873)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (565,939) 955,572
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 1,198,031 242,459

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 632,092 1,198,031
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Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following

Particulars Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2020 March 2019

Balance with banks :
On current account 625,124 1,196,456
Cash on hand 6,968 1,575
Balances per statement of cash flows 632,092 1,198,031

For SURAJMAL DAGA AND CO., For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration No: 004234S

SURAJMAL DAGA M S SRIKAR, IAS A R JAYAKUMAR

PROPRIETOR CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

Membership No: 021985 DIN:- 07882939 DIN: 00827438

UDIN: 20021985AAAAAG3182

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: 30th September 2020 Date: 30th September 2020

UDIN: 20021985AAAAAG3182
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Notes InRs
As at 31 March 2018 15 4,950,000
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31 March 2019 4,950,000
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31 March 2020 4,950,000

B. Other equity

Particulars Notes Reserves and surplus Total other
General Retained equity
Reserve earnings
Balance at 1 April 2018 3,359,735 33,665,060 37,024,795
Profit for the year - 2,895,429 2,895,429
Other comprehensive income 141,172 141,172
Total comprehensive income for the year - 3,036,601 3,036,601
Transfer to general reserve - - -
Dividends paid 16 -1 (1,237,500) | (1,237,500)
Dividends Tax paid (254,373) (254,373)
-l (1,491,873) | (1,491,873)
Balance at 31 March 2019 3,359,735 35,209,788 38,569,523
Balance at 1 April 2019 3,359,735 35,209,788 38,569,523
Profit for the year - 5,268,833 5,268,833
Other comprehensive income (322,380) (322,380)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 4,946,453 4,946,453

Transfer to general reserve -

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners: -

Dividends paid 16 (1,237,500) | (1,237,500)
Dividends Tax paid (254,372) (254,372)
-1 (1,491,872) | (1,491,872)
Balance at 31 March 2020 3,359,735 38,664,369 | 42,024,104
For SURAJMAL DAGA AND CO., For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No: 004234S
SURAJMAL DAGA M S SRIKAR, IAS A R JAYAKUMAR
PROPRIETOR CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
Membership No: 021985 DIN:- 07882939 DIN: 00827438
UDIN: 20021985AAAAAG3182
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 30th September 2020 Date: 30th September 2020

UDIN: 20021985AAAAAG3182
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Note 1: General information
A. Corporate information

a) The principal activity of the Company is to act as Manager of Venture Capital Funds. The Company is managing four venture
capital funds at present.

b) The Company is a Small and medium Sized Company (SMC) as defined in the General Instruction in respect of Accounting
Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

B. Basis of accounting

These financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2020 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
standards (“Ind AS”) issued under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. They were approved
by the Company’s board of directors on 30th September 2020

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance
with Accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

C. Going Concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The management has given the significant uncertainties
arising out of the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic globally and in India, the management has assessed the cash flow projections
and available liquidity for a period of twenty four months from the date of these financial statements. Based on this evaluation,
management believes that the Company will be able to continue as a ‘going concern’ in the foreseeable future and for a period of
at least twelve months from the date of these financial statements.

D. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise indicated.

E. Key estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use of estimates and assumptions for some items,
which might have an effect on their recognition and measurement in the balance sheet and statement of profit and loss. The actual
amounts realized may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:

(i) Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to which components of the cost may be
capitalized.

Useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where the
useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule I, they are based on technical advice, taking into account the nature
of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated
technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support. Assumptions also need to be made, when the
Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalized and which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalized.

(i) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions
include discount rate, trends in salary escalation and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined
by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying
bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations.
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(iii) Recognition of deferred tax assets

A deferred tax asset is recognized for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. The management assumes that taxable profits will
be available while recognizing deferred tax assets.

(iv) Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources,
and on past experience and circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may
therefore vary from the figure included in other provisions.

F. Measurement of fair values
The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for financial instruments.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The management regularly
reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing
services, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support
the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such
valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Note 2: Significant accounting policies

i. Revenue

(a) Revenue from rendering of services

The Company is into asset management service and receives fee based on the corpus managed for a particular period. The
Company recognizes revenue from rendering of services on time proportion basis with reference to the stage of completion and
the costs incurred.

The Front End Fee and Processing Fee are recognized as and when due.Interest income is recognized using the effective interest
rate method.

ii. Employee benefits
a. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected
to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

b. Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. The Company’s
contributions paid/payable to Managerial Superannuation Fund, Employees’ State Insurance Scheme, Employees’ Pension
Schemes, 1995 and other funds, are determined under the relevant approved schemes and/or statutes, and are recognized as
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service. There are no
further obligations other than the contributions payable to the approved trusts/appropriate authorities.
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c. Defined benefit plans

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value
of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the
present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in Other Comprehensive
Income. Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to
measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into account
any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service
or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

d. Other long-term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value.
Re-measurements are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Other employee benefits include leave
encashment/long-term compensated absences schemes.

iii. Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a
business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in OCI.

a. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to
the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

(i) Has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and

(i) Intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for:

(i) Temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

(i) Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such
reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.
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Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
a) The entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

b) The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same
taxable entity.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit Entitlement is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period in which such credit can be carried forward for
set off. The carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement is reviewed at each balance sheet date

iv. Property, plant and equipment
a. Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:
a) lts purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

b) Any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management.

Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, are recognized in profit or loss.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.

All property, plant and equipment received in exchange for non-monetary assets are measured at fair value unless the exchange
transaction lacks commercial substance or the fair value of neither the asset received nor the asset given up is reliably measurable.
Measurement of an exchange at fair value will result in the recognition of a gain or loss based on the carrying amount of the asset
surrendered. If a fair value can be determined reliably for either the asset received or the asset given up, then the fair value of the
asset given up should be used unless the fair value of the asset received is more clearly evident.

b. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will
flow to the Group.

c. Depreciation

The Company has followed the Written down value method for charging depreciation on all items of Fixed Assets, at the rates
specified in Schedule Il to the Act; these rates are considered as the minimum rates. If management'’s estimate of the useful life
of the fixed asset is shorter than that envisaged in Schedule Il, depreciation is provided at a higher rate based on management’s
estimate of the useful life.
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v. Financial Assets
(a) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.On initial
recognition, a financial asset is recognized at fair value, in case of financial assets which are recognized at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost
is attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

(b) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at
» amortised cost

« fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

« fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business
model for managing financial assets.

(c) Trade Receivables and Loans

Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income
through the expected life of financial instrument.

(d) Debt Instruments

Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’) or fair value
through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) till de-recognition on the basis of:

(i) The Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and
(ii) The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

(i) Measured at amortised cost: Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from
impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized
in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On de-recognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to ‘Other Income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Measured at fair value through profit or loss: A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified
as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend
income if any, recognized as ‘Other Income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(e) Equity Instruments

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value, the Company may, on
initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument is recognized as other income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends,
on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognized in OCI. Amounts recognized in OCI are not subsequently reclassified
to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognized as ‘other income’
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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(f) De-recognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

(g) Impairment of Financial Asset

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financial assets in FVTPL
category.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises 12 month expected credit losses for
all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly
since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial
asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. The Company’s trade receivables do not contain significant financing
component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected
cash shortfall.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.
vi. Financial liabilities
(a) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and
loss. In case of trade payables, they are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are held at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

(b) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value
through profit or loss is measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
vii. Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized only when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of
resources to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provision is not discounted to its present
value and is determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will
not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood
of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment
loss on the assets associated with that contract.

viii. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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ix. Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than
the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding
change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

x. Leases

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consists of lease for office premises. The Company, at the inception of a contract,
assesses whether the contract is a lease or not a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange for a consideration. This policy has been applied to contracts existing and
entered into on or after April 1, 2019.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the
lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

For SURAJMAL DAGA AND CO., For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration No: 004234S

SURAJMAL DAGA M S SRIKAR, IAS A R JAYAKUMAR
PROPRIETOR CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
Membership No: 021985 DIN:- 07882939 DIN: 00827438
UDIN: 20021985AAAAAG3182

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: 30th September 2020 Date: 30th September 2020

UDIN: 20021985AAAAAG3182
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020
Note 3: Property, plant and equipment

Computer Electrical | Furniture Vehicles Office Total Intanaibles
Equipments | Equipments | & Fixtures Equipments g

As at 1 April 2017

Gross carrying amount
Deemed cost as at 1 April 2017 13,210 42,441 3,465 | 84,261 25,067 | 168,444 -
Closing gross carrying amount 13,210 42,441 3,465 | 84,261 25,067 168,444 -
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation - - - - - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation - - - - - - -
Net carrying amount 13,210 42,441 3,465 | 84,261 25,067 | 168,444 -

Year ended 31 March 2018
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 13,210 42,441 3,465 | 84,261 25,067 168,444 -
Exchange differences - - - - - -
Additions - 77,861 - - 77,861 -
Disposals (2,526) (888) | (2,419) - (8,019) | (13,852)
Capitalised during the year
Closing gross carrying amount 10,684 41,553 78,907 | 84,261 17,048 | 232,453 -
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation - - - - - - -
Depreciation charge during the year - 5,678 5,081 21,892 8,064 40,715 -
Impairment - - - - - -
Disposals - - - - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation - 5,678 5,081 | 21,892 8,064 40,715 -
Net carrying amount 10,684 35,875 73,826 | 62,369 8,984 | 191,738 -

Year ended 31 March 2019
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 10,684 41,553 78,907 | 84,261 17,048 232,453 -
Exchange differences -
Additions -
Disposals - -
Transfers -
Capitalised during the year
Closing gross carrying amount 10,684 41,553 78,907 | 84,261 | 17,048.00 232,453 -
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Opening accumulated depreciation - 5,678 5,081 21,892 8,064 40,715 -
Depreciation charge during the year - 9,288 18,842 16,204 1,592 45,926 -
Impairment loss (iii) (note 11) -
Disposals - - - - - - -
Exchange differences -
Closing accumulated depreciation and - 14,966 23,923 | 38,096 9,656 -
impairment 86,640.97
Net carrying amount 10,684 26,587 54,984 | 46,165 7,392 | 145,812 -
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Year ended 31 March 2020
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 10,684 41,553 78,907 | 84,261 17,048 232,453 -
Exchange differences - - - - - -
Additions - - - - - - -
Disposals - -41,553 - - - -41,553 -
Transfers - - - - - -

Capitalised during the year - - - - -

Closing gross carrying amount 10,684 - 78,907 | 84,261 17,048 190,900 -

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Opening accumulated depreciation - 14,966 23,923 | 38,096 9,656 86,641 -

Depreciation charge during the year - 4,239 13,964 11,994 874 31,072 -

Impairment loss (iii) (note 11) - - - - - -

Disposals - -19,205 - - - -19,205 -

Exchange differences - - - - - -

Closing accumulated depreciation and - - 37,887 | 50,090 10,530 98,508 -

impairment

Net carrying amount 10,684 - 41,020 | 34,171 6,518 92,393 -
Gross carrying amount Right of Use Assets

As at 31 March, 2019 -
As at 30 September, 2019

Opening gross carrying amount (on implementation of Ind AS 116) 1.738.094
Additions -
Disposals -
Closing gross carrying amount 1,738,094

Accumulated depreciation -
Opening accumulated amortisation -
Depreciation charge during the year 1,158,730

Disposals -
Closing accumulated depreciation 1,158,730
Net carrying amount 579,364

4 Other Financial assets - Non-current

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
(Unsecured, considered good)

Advances other than capital advances

Security Deposits 990,001 931,765
Telephone Deposit 5,700 5,700
Total other financial assets 995,701 937,465
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Note 5 : Deferred tax (Liability) / Assets

ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Particulars As on 31 March 2020 | As on 31 March 2019
Depreciation on PPE 41,321 42,130
Relating to Provisions 1,831,312 1,410,875
Lease Liabilites 5117 -
Impairment of Trade Receivables - -
Other Current Asset Measurement Difference - -
Finance Asset Measurement Difference - -
Net Deferred tax Liability / (Assets) 1,877,750 1,453,005

Movement in Deferred Tax Assets (Net) during the financial year 2018-19

Particulars

At April 1,2018

Recognized in P&L

Recognized in OCI

At March 31, 2019

Deferred Tax Liabilites

Deferred Tax Asset

- On fixed Assets 45,075 (2,945) - 42,130
- On provision for Employee Benefits 1,226,758 233,718 (49,601) 1,410,875
Net Deferred tax Liability / (Assets) 1,271,833 230,773 (49,601) 1,453,005

Movement in Deferred Tax Assets (Net) during the financial year 2019-20

Particulars

At April 1,2019

Recognized in P&L

Recognized in OCI

At March 31, 2020

Deferred Tax Liabilites

Deferred Tax Asset

- On fixed Assets 42,130 (809) - 41,321
- On Lease Assets and Liabilites - 5,117 5,117
- On provision for Employee Benefits 1,410,875 312,012 108,425 1,831,312
Net Deferred tax Liability / (Assets) 1,453,005 316,320 108,425 1,877,750

6 Trade Receivables

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 | As at 31st March, 2019
Considered good — Unsecured 4,391,170
Total Trade Receivables 4,391,170 -
7 Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 | As at 31st March, 2019

Balances with banks

- in current accounts 625,124 1,196,456
Cash on hand 6,968 1,575
Total cash and cash equivalents 632,092 1,198,031
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ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED

8 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

(i) Earmarked Balances with banks

Unpaid dividend accounts

(i) Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money

Deposits with maturity above 3 months and below 12 months

45,136,314

38,463,940

Total Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

45,136,314

38,463,940

9 Other Financial Assets

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 | As at 31st March, 2019
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits 919,009 1,182,430
Amount receivable from Bank 41,300 -
Total Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 960,309 1,182,430

10 Current Tax Asset (Net)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 | As at 31st March, 2019
Income Tax Refund Due 1,146,164 315,106
Tax Deducted at Source - 1,102,598
(Net of provision For FY 18-19 of Rs. 13,44,182)
Total Current Tax Asset (Net) 1,146,164 1,417,704

11 Other current assets

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

Unsecured, considered good -

Duties and Taxes Receivables (GST Input Credit) - 900
Recoverable from Kitven Fund 4 - 100,000
Prepaid expenses 36,856 105,381
KARSEMVEN Fund - 4,973,102
Total other current assets 36,856 5,179,383

No advance is due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any
advance is due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
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ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED

12 Equity share capital

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2020 March, 2019

(a) Authorised Capital

1,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 100 each 10,000,000 10,000,000
(Previous Year 1,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 100 each) 10,000,000 | 10,000,000
(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid
49,500 Equity shares of Rs. 100 each Fully Paid up 4,950,000 4,950,000
(Previous Year 49,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up) 4,950,000 4,950,000
(c) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares of the Company
Equity Shareholders
- KSIIDC 16,500 16,500
- KSFC 16,500 16,500
- SIDBI 16,500 16,500
TOTAL 49,500 49,500

(d) Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the
reporting period

Equity Shareholders

Number of shares at the beginning of the period 49,500 49,500
Add: Equity Shares issued during the year - -
Number of shares at the end of the period 49,500 49,500

(f) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100/- per share. Each shareholder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board
of Directors if any is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation
of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED
13 Other Equity

As on 31 March 2020 | As on 31 March 2019
General Reserve 3,359,735 3,359,735
Retained earnings 38,664,369 35,209,788
Other Equity 42,024,104 38,569,523

(i) General Reserve

As on 31 March 2020 | As on 31 March 2019
Opening balance 3,359,735 3,359,735
Movement - -
Closing balance 3,359,735 3,359,735

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general
reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items
included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

(ii) Retained earnings

As on 31 March 2020 | As on 31 March 2019
Opening balance 35,209,788 33,665,060
Net profit for the period 5,268,833 2,895,429
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings (322,380) 141,172
Transfer to General Reserve - -
Dividends (1,237,500) (1,237,500)
Tax on Dividends (254,372) (254,373)
Closing balance 38,664,369 35,209,788

Balance sheet amounts — Gratuity

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation gratuity over the year are
as follows:

Present Value | Fair Value of | Net Amount

of Obligation | Plan Assets
1 April 2018 2,046,546 2,046,546
Current service cost 154,829 154,829
Interest expense/(income) 251,578 251,578
Past service cost -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 406,407 406,407
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income) -
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions (1,524) (1,524)
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 31,524 31,524
Experience (gains)/losses 160,773 160,773
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 190,773 190,773
Contributions : -
Employer -
Plan participants -
Benefit payments -
31 March 2019 2,643,726 2,643,726
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Present Value | Fair Value of | Net Amount

of Obligation | Plan Assets
1 April 2019 2,643,726 - 2,643,726
Current service cost 196,040 - 196,040
Interest expense/(income) 280,411 - 280,411
Past service cost - -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 476,451 - 476,451
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income) -
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions - - -
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 354,988 - 354,988
Experience (gains)/losses 75,817 - 75,817
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 430,805 - 430,805
Contributions : -
Employer - - -
Plan participants - - -
Benefit payments - - -
31 March 2020 3,550,982 - 3,550,982

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:

As on 31 March 2020 | As on 31 March 2019
Present value of funded obligations 3,550,982 2,643,726
Fair value of plan assets -
Deficit of funded plan 3,550,982 2,643,726
Unfunded plans - -
Deficit of gratuity plan 3,550,982 2,643,726

Post-Employment benefits

Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Discount rate

6.05%

7.50%

Salary Esclation rate

7%

7%

Employee benefit obligations
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

31 March 2020

Assumptions Discount rate

Salary Escalation rate

Sensivity level 50 bps increase

50 bps decrease

50 bps increase

50 bps decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation (129,620)

138,013

73,878

(79,795)

Sensitivity analysis is determined based on the expected movement in liability if the assumptions were not proved to be true on

different count.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.
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Expected Future Benefit Payments

. Gratuity
Particulars
31.03.2020
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 76,265
2- 5 years 2,102,242
5-9 Years 195,866
10 Years and above 3,669,784

The Company is expected to contribute NIL to the plan during the FY 2020-21

FIXED ASSETS SCHEDULE AS PER I.T. RULE

(Amount in Rupees)

W.DV.ason | ADDITIONS [ ToTaLAS ON DEPN FOR | W.D.V. as on
NAME OF ASSET 01042019 [ [par Turar | 2" | 31032020 | RATE | tHEYEAR | 31.03.2020
BLOCK A - 40%
COMPUTER N N - - 40% - -
BLOCK B - 15%
ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT 47630| -| -| 10,600 37,030 15% | 5555| 31476
OFFICE EQUIPMENT 35061 -| - - 35,061 15% | 5250 | 29,802
BLOCK C -10%
FURNITURE AND FIXTURES 78279 -| - - 78,279 10%| 7,828| 70,451
BLOCK D -15%
MOTOR CAR 138762 -| - .| 138,762 15% | 20,814 | 117,948
MOBILE PHONE 8117 -| - - 8,117 15% | 1,218 6,900
TOTAL 307,850| -| -| 10,600| 297,250 40,674 | 256,576
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14 Provisions

ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

Long-term provisions

(a) Provision for employee benefits

6,938,605

5,160,378

Total Current borrowings

6,938,605

5,160,378

15 Other financial liabilities (current)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 | As at 31st March, 2019
Current
- Expense Payable 147,450 214,537
Other Payables
- Wrong Credit By Bank - 7,400
- Banglore Chamber of Industry and Commerce - 1,350
Total other financial liabilities 147,450 223,287

16 Other current liabilities

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 | As at 31st March, 2019
Current
Duties and Taxes Payable 847,904 808,520
Total other current financial liabilities 847,904 808,520

17 Short-term provisions

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 | As at 31st March, 2019
Short-term provisions
(a) Provision for employee benefits 337,739 266,061
Total non-current tax assets 337,739 266,061
18 Current Tax Liabilites (Net)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 | As at 31st March, 2019
Income Tax Liability 2,614 -
(Net of TDS & Advance Tax of Rs. 21,48,433 for FY 2019-20)
Total Current Tax Liabilites (Net) 2,614 -
19 Revenue from Operations
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Sale of Services

(a) Management Fee 16,484,119 13,067,272
(b) Processing Fee 550,000 500,000
(c) Front End Fee 187,500 152,000
Total revenue from continuing operations 17,221,619 13,719,272
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20 Other income

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
(a) Interest income 2,945,676 2,767,571
(b) Excess Liability written back 13,250 49
(c) Other non-operating income
- Interest on IT refund 91,300 -
- Others 1,540 1,878
Total other income 3,051,766 2,769,498
21 Employee benefit expense
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Salaries, wages and bonus 8,872,030 8,065,273
Contribution to provident fund, State Insurance & Superannuation scheme 101,077 89,913
Staff welfare expenses 14,429 20,662
Leave Encashment 1,028,849 676,287
Gratuity 476,451 787,953
Total employee benefit expense 10,492,836 9,640,088

22 Finance costs

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest & finance charges on financial liabilities at amortised cost - 1,730
Less: Amount capitalised - -
Finance costs expensed in profit or loss - 1,730
Interest Expense on lease rentals 85,603 -
Total Finance Cost 85,603 1,730

23 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 31,072 45,926
Amortization of Right of Use Asset 1,158,730 -
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 1,189,802 45,926
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24 Other expenses

ALL AMOUNTS IN INDIAN RUPEES, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

(a) Administrative and Other Expenses

Payment to Auditor

- Statutory auditors 40,000 40,000
- Tax auditors - 15,000
Advertisements 300,000 486,735
Bank Charges 4,136 6,267
Books and periodicals 8,800 8,710
Business Development 70,000 -
General Expenses 67,593 118,004
Insurance 6,377 7,902
Legal and Professional Charges 304,500 423,700
Meeting Expenses 15,862 9,117
Membership and Subscription Fee 7,500 7,500
Postage, Telephone and Telegram 50,279 52,399
Printing & Stationery 99,857 67,091
Rate and Taxes 22,495 18,287
Rent and Hire Charges - 1,224,000
Repairs and Maintenance

- Others 26,155 15,475
- Computer 6,417 12,964
Sitting Fees 120,000 106,000
Travelling & Conveyance 190,862 107,325
Vehicle Maintenance 47,388 65,712
Loss on sale of Fixed Asset 13,364 -
Total other expenses 1,401,585 2,792,188

25 Earnings per share

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(a) Basic earnings per share INR INR
From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the Company 106.44 58.49
From discontinued operation - -
Total basic earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company 106.44 58.49
(b) Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the Company 106.44 58.49
From discontinued operation - -
Total diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company 106.44 58.49
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(c) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating basic
earnings per share:
From continuing operations 5,268,833 2,895,429
From discontinued operation - -
5,268,833 2,895,429

Diluted earnings per share
Profit from continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the Company:
Used in calculating basic earnings per share 5,268,833 2,895,429
Add: interest savings on convertible bonds - -
Used in calculating diluted earnings per share 5,268,833 2,895,429
Profit from discontinued operation - -
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating 5,268,833 2,895,429
diluted earnings per share

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating 49,500 49,500
basic earnings per share
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share: - -
Options - -
Convertible bonds - -
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used 49,500 49,500
as the denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share

Note 26: Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category

As on 31 March 2020 As on 31 March 2019

FVPL | FVOCI | Amortised cost | FVPL | FVOCI | Amortised cost
Financial assets
Investments
Trade Receivables 4,391,170 -
Cash and cash equivalents 632,092 1,198,031
Other bank balances 45,136,314 38,463,940
Security deposits 995,701 937,465
Other Financial Assets 960,309 1,182,430
Total financial assets - - 52,115,586 - - 41,781,866
Financial liabilities
Lease Liabilites 599,698 -
Other Financial Liabilites 147,450 223,287
Total financial liabilities - - 747,148 - - 223,287
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Note 27: Financial risk management

“The Company’s activities expose it to Liquidity risk & Credit risk.
“(i) Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the
Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial conditions, current economic
trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly.”

“The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk the Company compares the risk of a default occuring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such as :

(i) Actual or expected significant adverse change in business
(ii) Actual or expected significant change in the operating results of the counterparty

(i) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its
obligation.

(iv) Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty”

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within due date when they fall due. This
definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic
factors.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Where loans or receivables have been written
off, the Company may engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these
are recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure

Exposure to credit risk 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Financial risk for which loss allowance is measured using 12 months expected Credit Losses (ECL)

Cash & cash equivalent 632,092 1,198,031
Other Bank balance 45,136,314 38,463,940
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity - -
Security Deposit 995,701 937,465
Other Financial Assets 960,309 1,182,430
Financial risk for which loss allowance is measured using Lifetime expected Credit Losses (ECL)

Trade Receivables 4,391,170 -

“(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable
price. The Company’s treasury depoartment is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement manangement. In addition,
processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company’s net
liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.”
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Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based
on contractual undiscounted payments

Less than 1 year |1 to 5years | More than 5 years | Total

As on 31.03.2020

Lease Liabilites 599,698 599,698
Other financial liabilities 147,450 - - 147,450
As on 31.03.2019

Other financial liabilities 223,287 - - 223,287

Maturity profile of financial assets

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial assets at the reporting date

Less than 1 year | 1to 5 years | More than 5 years | Total

As on 31.03.2019

Cash and cash equivalents 1,198,031 - - 1,198,031
Other bank balances 38,463,940 - - 38,463,940
Security deposits - 937,465 - 937,465
Other financial assets 1,182,430 - - 1,182,430
As on 31.03.2020 -
Cash and cash equivalents 632,092 - - 632,092
Other bank balances 45,136,314 - - 45,136,314
Security deposits - 995,701 995,701
Other financial assets 960,309 - - 960,309
Trade Receivables 4,391,170 4,391,170

Note 27-A: A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit / (loss) before tax at the statutory income tax
rate to recognised income tax expense for the year indicated are as follows:

. For the year ended
Particulars

31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
Profit / (Loss) for the year 7,103,559 4,008,838
Enacted tax rate in India (applicable to the Company) 25.168% 26.000%
Expected income tax expense / (benefit) at statutory tax rate 1,787,824 1,042,298
Tax Effect on the following:
- Reduction in tax rate (61,522) -
- Other Adjustments - 120,712
Tax Expense for the year 1,726,302 1,163,010
Effective Income tax rate 24.30% 29.01%

Effective from FY 2019-20, Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 prescribes the Income Tax rate at 25.168% (including
10% Surcharge and 4% Education Cess) instead of the normal rate of 26% (including 4% Education Cess), provided that certain
deductions are not claimed by the Company. The Company has decided to opt for section 115BAA instead of the normal rate of
tax, as the said is beneficial.
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Note 28: Capital management

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The primary
objective of the Company’s Capital Management is to maximise shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic environment and the requirements of the financial statements.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus debt.

31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Net debt - -
Total equity plus debt 46,974,103 43,519,523
Net debt to equity ratio 0% 0%

(i) Loan covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, there are no financial covenants which are required to be complied by the
Company

(i) Dividends

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30th September 2020 have recommended the payment of final dividend of Rs. 25/-
per share of the face value of Rs. 100/- each for the financial year 2019-20. This proposed dividend is subject to the approval
of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. For financial year 2018-19, the Company proposed final dividend of
Rs. 25/- per share of Rs. 100/- each. The same was declared and paid during the financial year 2019-20.

Note 29: Segment information

As the Company does not have more than one business segment or geographical segment, disclosure requirement as per Ind
AS-108 (Segment Reporting) does not arise.

Note 30: Leases

Effective from April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing
on April 1, 2019 using the simplified transition approach. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as
if the standard had been applied from 01.04.2019. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been
retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our Annual
Report for year ended March 31, 2020.

Due to the transistion to Ind AS 116, the expense is higher by Rs. 20,333 for the year ended 31.03.2020 as compared with the
accounting under erstwhile Ind AS 17.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
1. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

2. Applied the practical expedient to grand father the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is
applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is 7%

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2020:

Category = Office Premise Amount in Indian Rs
Balance as of April 1, 2019 0
Reclassified on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 1738094
Additions 0
Depreciation 1158730
Balance as of March 31, 2020 579364

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets Rs. 11,58,730 is included under depreciation and amortization expense in
the statement of Profit and Loss.
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Note 31: Related party transactions

Information in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 24 on Related Party Disclosures

I. Related Parties

(a) Entity with significant influence over the Company

Ownership interest
Name Type Place of As on 31 As on 31
incorporation March 2020 March 2019
KSIIDC | Entity Having Significant Influence India 33.33% 33.33%
KSFC Entity Having Significant Influence India 33.33% 33.33%
SIDBI Entity Having Significant Influence India 33.33% 33.33%

(b) The directors of Karnataka Trustee Company Private Limited are also directors of the Company.

(c) Key Managerial Personnel

(i) Shri Ganga Ram, Baderiya, IAS
(i) Dr. Ekroop Caur, IAS

(iii) Shri Prashant Kumar Mishra, IAS

(iv) Shri Sanjay Jain
(v) Shri N R N Simha

(vi) Shri GV Chandrakumar
(vii) Shri AR Jayakumar

Il. Transaction with Related Parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Name of the Party trg:;:::i:::s Year ended t?;:(s):z:i:; Amc;:xon:]due Amount due to
KSIIDC Rent Paid 31.03.2020 1,224,000 - -
Key Managerial Personnel Salary 31.03.2020 4,209,228 - -
Key Managerial Personnel Sitting Fee Paid 31.03.2020 33,000 - -
KSIIDC Rent Paid 31.03.2019 1,224,000 - -
Key Managerial Personnel Salary 31.03.2019 3,826,572 - -
Key Managerial Personnel Sitting Fee Paid 31.03.2019 40,000 - -

The Company has sublet a portion of it's premises to Karnataka Trustee Company Private Limited with Rs. Zero as rent receivable.
Note 32: Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

a) Contingent Liabilities

Particulars As on 31 March 2020 | As on 31 March 2019

Total - -

b) Contingent Assets -

Particulars As on 31 March 2020 | As on 31 March 2019

Total - -
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b) Other Information

Particulars As on 31 March 2020 | As on 31 March 2019
(a) Amount of Proposed Dividend 1,237,500 1,237,500
Amount of Dividend per Share 25 25

(b) Amount of issue of securities used for the purpose other than the purpose for which
the amount of the issue was made

Note 33: Commitments

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

Particulars

As on 31 March 2020

As on 31 March 2019

Property, plant and equipment

Investment property

Intangible assets

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not -
provided for (Net of advances)

Note 34: Nature of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is to act as a Fund Manager of Ventrue Capital Funds. The Company is managing 4 Venture
Capital funds at present.

Note 35: Management Fees

i. The Company is eligible to receive fixed management fee of Rs. 5 lakhs p.a. from KITVEN Fund - 2. During the year, the
Company has accounted Rs. 5 lakhs as revenue from KITVEN Fund - 2

ii. The Company is eligible to receive management fee from KARSEMVEN Fund. The commitment period has ended on 09 May
2018, which has been extended until 31 March 2020 by the subscribers of the Fund. The management fee during the extended
committed period shall be payable at 2.00% p.a of the corpus outstanding as at 09-05-2018 plus any additional drawdown
(new and follow investments) amount permitted by the Investment Committee (IC), including permssion for drawdown of
expenses during the period less any divestments made to the contributors till the end of previous quarter. For such additional
drawdowns permitted by the IC, the management fee will be calculated from the date of IC approval. During the year, the
Company has accounted Rs. 1.04 crore as revenue from the KARSEMVEN Fund.

iii. The Company is eligible to receive management fee of 1.00% p.a on the committed corpus from KITVEN Fund - 3 (Biotech).
During the year, the Company has accounted Rs. 35.19 lakhs as revenue from KITVEN Fund - 3 (Biotech).

iv. The Company is eligible to receive management fee of 2.00% p.a on the committed corpus from the quarter in which KITVEN
Fund 4 (AVGC) become operational. The Fund became operational during the quarter ending December 2019. Accordingly,
the Company has accounted Rs. 20.00 lakhs as revenue from KITVEN Fund - 4 (AVGC).

Note 36: Dividend

The Company proposes dividend at the rate of 25% for the year on the equity capital of the Company.

For SURAJMAL DAGA AND CO.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No: 004234S

SURAJMAL DAGA
PROPRIETOR

Membership No: 021985
UDIN: 20021985AAAAAG3182

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

M S SRIKAR, IAS
CHAIRMAN
DIN:- 07882939

A R JAYAKUMAR
DIRECTOR
DIN: 00827438

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 30th September 2020
UDIN: 20021985AAAAAG3182

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 30th September 2020
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
KARNATAKA ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED, BENGALURU FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2020.

The preparation of financial statements of Karnataka Asset Management Company Private Limited, Bengaluru for the year
ended 31 March 2020 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is
the responsibility of the management of the Company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the
Act based on Independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is
stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report 30 September 2020.

“The assets under management through various schemes managed by Karnataka Asset Management Company Private
Limited, Bengaluru are not reflected in its Balance Sheet, since these assets do not form part of Karnataka Asset
Management Company Private Limited, Bengaluru. Therefore | do not look into operation of these schemes including
decision making regarding acquisition, management and disposal of the assets managed by the Karnataka Asset
Management Company Private Limited, Bengaluru and express no opinion on the soundness of the investments”.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct the supplementary audit of the financial
statements of Karnataka Asset Management Company Private Limited, Bengaluru for the year ended 31 March 2020 under
Section 143(6) (a) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

(ANUP FRANCIS DUNGDUNG)
ACCOUNTANT GENERAL (AUDIT-II)
KARNATAKA, BENGALURU

Bengaluru
Date : 06 November 2020
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